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. proud of what we have achieved in Haiti, including the permanent closure of 15 orphanages and

Lumos Foundation Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2022

FOREWORD

Welcome to the 2022 Lumos Annual Report.

The world continues to be volatile and uncertain. Heightened conflict, economic crises and the
ongoing impact of Covid-19 have had a disproportionate effect on the most vulnerable children.
Lumos’s mission to protect :Children from family separatlon and institutionalisation has never
been more lmportant '

The Russian invasion of Ukraine has brought to light for many the harrowing cost of conflict for
children and families. While Lumos has been able to reunite many children with their families,
others — many with disabilities - remain trapped in institutions or at risk from the conflict

" as refugees. The indictment of Vladimir Putin on war crime..c'harges specific to children has

highlighted the degree to which the international community recognises that children are being
forcibly taken from their families in contravention of international law - and mdeed that children
belong in families. ' ¥

\
Y

Lumos, with its longstanding programmes in Ukraine and,neighbouring Moldova, rapidly
responded to the crisis in Ukraine. We assisted both governments in making emergency
assessments of children living in institutions, providing immediate lifesaving supplies, setting
up emergency foster care and relocating children living in institutions to safer areas, as well as
continuing our ongoing work to influence change at all levels.

{
Lumos itself has faced challenges to its programmes, operations and fundraising. In February
2022 we put in place a two-year transition plan to streamline and i improve the effectiveness. of
our programmes and organisation. We reviewed our strategies in Colombia, Kenya, Ukraine and
Moldova. We centrallsed our EU liaison and advocacy work in London, closmg our Brussels office.

In June 2022 we brought to an end Lumos’s two 5-year programmes in Haiti: theJomt USAID/
Lumos programme on the prevention of trafficking into and out of institutions; and the Lumos
deinstitutionalisation project - reuniting children with their families and communities. We are

the reintegration of over 300 children with their families. L.
A

As we refocus and consolidate, we have inevitably had to say goodbye to staff around the world
and in the UK, some of whom have been with Lumos for many years. We would like to pay tribute
to them all for their commitment and hard work. Their legacy will live on through the countless
numbers of children’s Iives they've changed for the better.

In 2022 we also brd farewell to three Iong serving and respected Trustees: Danny Cohen, Tanya
Motie and-Di Moore. All three have prowded exceptional support and expertise to Lumos and will
be missed. We were delighted to weIcome to the Board the expertise of Doreen Mulenga, Kate
WI”S and Usman Ali. \ . ;

Finally, a heartfelt thank you to everyone whoihas contributed to our impact in 2022. In the face
of an incredibly challenging year, we're proud df all that we've achieved and we stand ready and
more determined than ever to further our. mlssron ﬁghtrng for every chrld s right to a safe and

loving family.

Carol Copland, Chair of Trustees R

03 | Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022




Lumos Foundation:Strategic:Report forthe yearended!3 1]Decemberz2022, I@% // 7

HEESTADS:

[niearly022qwerapidlypivoted ourvork inBENN W@W ;
Ukrainetoiprovide;emergency,humanitarian )
=
yeanwelprovided)1 31925 childrentand]5:0 7| RN

RO
& G v ]77

/ i
Con{ GO
3

In'Moldovajwe developed. toolstoenablelocal In Colombia, as part of our

work supporting the Michin
Foundation to reunite families,

thesejassessmentsxw

education¥social'and healthTservices?

uted'atotal of
humanitarian'aid’'packagesiincluding food)

hygienesupplies¥clothing'and 'schoolitems!
We'also;supportedjl’

302;refugee childrenjtolaccess

we conducted 177 home visits
and provided psycho-social
support to 53 children and 76
care-givers.

10,338

10,958 children and 3,582 parents
and carers have benefited from
psycho-social support delivered in
Ukraine. Our ‘Training of Trainers’
programme saw us train 95 mental
health practitioners and 380
community social workers from all
25 regions of Ukraine to provide
effective support.
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hThe,waninlUkraine has disrupted Inithe Florestidistrict;in
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In'Kenya¥as'part of,ounmission;to,support

thelimplementation of,the.National Gare

ReformiStrategyiwe provided.training;to,the

directors’of;58'residentiallinstitutions that;

[host'over31000 childrenYas.well'as'deliverin
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awareness training:on.care,reform,to’3

36

Lumos continued to support the
deinstitutionalistion of Jordan’s care system

for children and adults with disabilities, and
trained 36 practitioners to assess the needs

of such individuals, and to develop individual
transition plans so they can move into family or
community-based care.

1]

200

As well as having an on-the-ground presencein a
right to'play,an‘active number of countries, we also provide training and
rolelinicare;reformWe developed ainew,manualion) technical support. Nearly 200 public officials and civil
society practitioners from 14 countries completed our

fand/partnerstwithithe,online,launchibeinglattended,by, online training programme about care reform in the
younglpeopleland practitioners fromli7/countriesy diverse contexts of Latin America and the Caribbean.
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WHAT WE DO FOR CHILDREN

Lumos is fighting for every child’s right to a family
by transforming care systems around the world.
We are an international charity striving for a future
where every child is raised in a safe, loving home,
supported by family to help them thrive. On
average more than 80% of children in orphanages
have a living parent, and research proves that
these institutions can harm a child’s growth and
development. Yet there are still an estimated 5.4
million children trapped in institutions globally.
Lumos sheds light on the root causes of family
separation - poverty, conflict and discrimination

- and demonstrates that children can safely be
united with families. By pressing governments

to reform care systems, and by building global
expertise and capacity with partners, we ensure no
child is forgotten.

Founded by author J.K. Rowling, we are lighting

a path to a brighter future where all children can
grow up in a safe and loving family. We believe in a
family for all children.

CHANGING THE SYSTEM

FOR CHILDREN

Thanks to the efforts of Lumos and our partners,

the harms of institutionalisation are now more
widely understood. Backed by better evidence,
there's growing consensus that no child belongs

in an institution. Separated from their families and
communities, children living in institutions are
deprived of the love, attention and opportunities
they need to thrive. In diverse countries and contexts,
we've worked hard to prove change is possible. With
careful planning and management, child protection
systems can be transformed to ensure all children
enjoy their right to grow up in a safe and loving
family. Our strategy builds on our rich heritage to
ensure thousands more children and families can
benefit from our work and that we achieve an impact
greater than the sum of our parts. The children
trapped in institutions are deprived of their basic
rights, their liberty and the chance to reach their full
potential. Every child taken away from their family
and consigned to an institution tears the very fabric
of a happy and healthy society.

We cannot afford to lose another generation of
children to institutions.

07 | Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022

INTERNAL CHANGES

2022 was a challenging year for Lumos. The
implementation of the recommendations of the
2020 organisational review was delayed by the

-.Covid pandemic. These organisational change
‘recommendations were reviewed and recalibrated in

< 2022. This review led to several major changes to the

organisation: downsizing, the consolidation of the

¢ three programme areas into one group, accelerating

i

the closeout of programmes and offices in the Czech
Repubilic, Haiti, Brussels and Bulgaria, an.
organisation-wide systems and processes review

- and a simplification of the organisation’s
'governance mechanisms.

Notwithstanding the challenges of the reorganisation,

and the loss of long-standing staff members due to

i the restructuring, much was achieved in 2022.

Y .
The simplification of the organisation’s governance
continued in 2022, to reflect the changed priorities
and size of the organisation. Three longstanding
Trustees rotated off the Board, and three new Trustees
were recruited. The Board committee structure was
altered with the formal Programme and Fundraising
and Engagement Committees changed to become
advisory groups from January 2023. A move towards
dashboard reporting is underway with the intent

- of reducing narrative reports and making Board

reporting s%rter and sharper, with a stronger
emphasis on |mpact and accountability.s

!
The war in Ukraine requi’red Lumos to rapidly scale
up its emergency programmes inresponse in both -~
Ukraine and Moldova. 2022 saw the development
of multl—year strategic. frameworks for our country
programmes in Moldova, Kenya and Colombia
and continued provision of the new model of
remote supportin Jordan and Panama. Lumos
focused on improving the quality, effectiveness
and implementation of our programme work and
strengthened programme management, monitoring,
and reporting. Added emphasis was given to
increasing our collaborative work with partners
and increasing our global and country level
advocacy work.

Staff recruitment, retention and wellbeing remain

a challenge given the post-Covid context, global
financial situation, work overload and recent
downsizing. Lumos’s progressive policy on working
from home, flexible work arrangements and core
mission provide some mitigation. A critical focus was
to recruit, rétain and nurture a thriving workforce
committed and aligned to the organisation’s values,
principles, and culture.



In addition, given the challenging global financial
crisis, Lumos sought to diversify its income streams
with a focus on institutional funding. This process is
underway; several proposals have been submitted -
which have seen some initial success.

In conclusion, though much has been achieved in 2022,
much remains to be done and there are significant

risks ahead. However, 2023 provides an opportunity

to stabilise the organisation, cc‘)nsolidate the changes
made in 2022 and create an organisation that is smaller,
more agile, and more purposeful and effective in its
mission to prevent children being separated from their
families and reuniting them when they are.

EMBEDDING A |
SAFEGUARDING CULTURE

Lumos prioritises safeguarding in all activities, helping
ensure children, adults at risk and the wider community
are protected, wherever we work. During 2022, Lumos
continued its work advancing the organisational

. understanding of safeguarding, embedding
safeguarding practice as an essential element of our
culture and values, and addressing identified gaps to
safely support strategic shifts in direction and delivery.
We developed and implemented a safeguarding ‘
strategy and framework for our Ukraine Emergency  *
Response, delivered refresher training and targeted
workshops for all staff, worked with Designated .
Safeguarding Leads and the Executive Leadership Team
to support and monitor safeguarding awareness and
implementation, and developed an Implementing
Safeguarding Toolkit for staff and partners. We also
conducted targeted work with delivery partners to
strengthen safeguarding approaches, ensure timely
reporting and escalation, and to improve the quality of
identification and response to safeguarding incidents. ;
Our-annual update of the Safeguarding Policy and
training materials reflected our work in humanitarian
‘settings, including strengthening focus on protection
from sexual exploitation and abuse, accountability to
communities and reporting and feedback mechanisms.
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AMPLIFYING YOUNG PEOPLE'S VOICES

We worked with Lumos self-advocates to create
our new manual, ‘Putting Children and Youth
Participation at the Heart of Care Reform’ The
manual sets out how children can and should be
involved in care reform, from making decisions
about their own care, through to having a say in
global policy. The voices of young people are at
the heart of all we do, and we are working on a
new child and youth participation strategy that
will build on our work with young people around
the world in 2023 and beyond.

111565 ALY
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At Lumos we work to protect children, to
prevent the separation of families, and to
promote the transformation of care systems. In
2022 we shared a new short film that explains
our mission and vision for every child to live in
a safe and loving family.

Watch the film here.
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EVERYTHING
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[LHINK{ITISEXTREMEDY
IMRORTANTJEOR{YOUNGIREOPLE

DECISIONSYTHATEAREGOINGATON

—

AEEEGTIUSYORTENIRSYGHOLOGISTS

ANDISOCGIAIRWORKERSIBELIEVE
THEYFAREDOINGITHEARIGHT]
THINGABUT(MANYATIMESYTHEY,
NOTEASKATHEMSELVES{WHETHER
WHEEEICOMEORTABIE{OR{NOTA
SORTRS{IMRORTANTRTOJINVOLVH
USISOITHATAWHCANIDIREGTI
INENUENCERTHEPROGESSJANDINOTS
TOISIMRIYINEORMAYOUNGIREORLA
WHEN]IT(ISJALREADY{DONES

= they are the expertson theirown lives¥and care
reform is more successful with theirinvolvement?

That's why,we put'children’and young people with
making and supporting.young'self;advocates
and.youth networks to'play.acentral role in our,
advocacy and campaigns?
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CHILDRENTAND]YO H
PATION'ATRTHEHEARTLOF{CAREIREFORM
Participation'atithe;Heart'of,Gare,Reformiwas]
published inMayr20228withyyoung peopleland]
launchiTheimanualiwhichwas,cofproduiced by

teamrpartnerstand/lumostselfs
availablejin fourjlanguagesysetsiout:how,children
and,young peoplecaniand[should bejinvolved,incare,

reformifrom'making;decisionstabouttheinown;care?
through,to havinglaisay,in;global policylltiaims to
challenge practitionersworldwideto.give children
policy,and practice?

SUPPORTINGIYOUNG PEOPLERTOILEAD,THEAWAY,

During the,yeanwe set.up alnew,YouthTAdvisory
Group,with'participants from
Ccolombia¥and,workedwithithem,to’raise;awareness

T
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2023

d’and;youth'participation’in

and beyond!

WORKINGDIRECTLY{WITH)YOUNG PEOPLE
\Weensuremeaningful participationlimourcountry
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CASE STUDY

TOGETHER WE IS
ARE STRONGER

“Since Lumos started to work with [Ukrainian] refugees

in Moldova,” says Eugenia Godoroja, Child and Youth
Participation Advisor, “Refugee children and young people
have been involved in participatory activities both locally
and nationally, as well as within Lumos initiatives.” This
included organising events for refugee and host children

to encourage social cohesion, such as trips to the National
Museum and circus, an International Children’s Day event in
June, and a summer school for children aged between 12 and
15 years old.

The summer school was an opportunity for children to

get to know each other, learn about using their voices to
advocate, get involved in various activities, and make new
friends. Former Lumos Youth Advisory Board members acted
as trainers and moderators, supported by Lumos staff. “The
Moldovan children could speak no Ukrainian, and the

! Ukrainian children no Romanian, but they found ways to
, communicate,” explains Marcel Straton, Communication and
. Advocacy Specialist. '

The young people participated in various trust and team-
building exercises, and were also introduced to ‘mobile
journalism; learning how to become news reporters using
smartphones. Split into groups, they were tasked with making
a video on any subject they chose. Without consultation, each
group chose the same topic: together we are stronger. As one
of the participants said during the closing feedback session:

“WE UNDERSTOOD THAT NO
MATTER THE LANGUAGE WE
SPEAK AND THE COUNTRY

WE COME FROM, TOGETHER
WE ARE STRONG AND CAN
OVERCOME ANY BARRIERS!"

Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022 | 14
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DEINSTITUTIONALISATION IS NOT
ONLY ABOUT CLOSING INSTITUTIONS
AND MOVING CHILDREN OUT OF
THEM, BUT IT IS ALSO ABOUT
TRANSFORMATION OF THE CARE
SYSTEM: REDUCING ITS DEPENDENCE
ON RESIDENTIAL CARE CENTRES

AND DESIGNING SERVICES WHICH
SUPPORT CHILDREN T0 LIVE IN
FAMILIES AND IN THE COMMUNITY.

BISSER SPIROV, SENIOR TECHNICAL ADVISOR

Lumos draws on knowledge and experience from
our country programmes to influence and support
the much-needed reform of care systems around the
world. We work with governments and partners to
transform care systems, using proven evidence-based
approaches, and provide technical support and training
for policymakers and practitioners to design and
implement reform. Throughout the process, we draw
on the opinions and ideas of young people with lived
experience of institutionalisation, and support local care
reform champions to advocate for change and lead the
~ way to care systems that put children’s rights first.
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Lumos Foundation Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2022‘ STRENGTHENING FAM“_Y AND
 COMMUNITY-BASED CARE SERVICES

\ Lumos works in Colombia to strengthen family and
' community-based care services with the aim of preventing
children from being placed in residential institutions, and
supporting those already in institutions to move back

PR“VIDING TRAINING to living with families. Our approach involves advocacy
H]R PuucYM AKERS AND PR AI:'I'"'IUNERS . to proimote children’s rights and instigate long-term

changé collaborating with government and civil society
orgamsanons on practical reforms, such as for including

a family strg\ngthenlng programme to reduce the risk of
children being separated from families and enteringthe
child protectioi-system; and developing strategies to enable
children who have been under protective measures to
effectively reintegrate back into their families. In 2022 we
worked with the Colombian Family Welfare Institute, other
government ministries and regional authorities that offer
social services to implement an evidence-based Action

Plan for holistic care reform in Colombia. We conducted

a needs assessment to understand the gaps in the foster
care system and identify opportunities to strengthen it.

We undertook a comprehensive strategic review of the
childcare and protection system, which included collecting
and analysing data on the experiences of 1,580 children

in Cundinamarca and Bogota. A training programme was
developed to strengthen the capacities of government
professionals and foster care service providers to recruit and
) support foster families. Training was also delivered to 52

P foster mothers and 75 government professionals and private
TRANSF[]RMING FUSTER EAR[ SYSTEMS service providers from four regions: Bogota, Cundinamarca,

: ! Antioquia and Tolima. One foster mother reported that the
training helped her to put herself in the place of the children
and “to improve my role as a foster mother’, while one of
the officials who attended said that the training should be
conducted for all professionals: “I learned to improve my
y communication with foster parents and to guide them in

developing secure attachments.”

. PUTTING PARTNERSHIP INTO PRACTICE

In Colombia, we also continued to work with the Michin
Foundation, supporting their transition from institutional care
provider to being the operator of a foster care programme.
In order to prevent children from entering or re-entering
institutional care, we worked with Michin to develop a
prevention programme for families at high risk, including
providing training and guidance to 215 children and 167
caregivers on topics such as resilience, life skills, emotion
management, parenting skills and access to services. To
support children’s reintegration with their families, 177
home visits were carried out, and psycho-social support was
provided to 53 children and 76 family carers. Data collected
showed a 51% increase in positive family interactions six
months after family reintegration. A reintegration strategy
was developed and shared with local government and
private operators, and training on family reintegration was
delivered to 32 practitioners from Bogota's Social Integration
Secretariat. A new recruitment strategy led to the successful
recruitment of 23 new foster families who are being
supported to care for 74 children. Sandra, who attended the
Michin Foundation's foster care training programme and now
provides foster care for three children aged six and under,
says: “For me this is a vocation and | do it from the heart.”

In partnership with the Inter-American Chlldren s
Institute, we developed an online training programme
tailored to the diverse contexts of Latin America and
the Caribbean, where more than 350,000 children
live in institutional care and thousands more live
in boarding schools. The course aims to raise
awareness among policymakers and practitioners
of the importance of meaningful child and youth
participation in care reform and the delivery of
support services. Videos and other course materials
were developed by youth advocates from the Latin
American Care Leavers Network, and Maicol and
Tatiana, two young people from the network, also
served as presenters, guiding participants through the
course and sharing their perspectives on different areas
of reform. Nearly 200 publlc officials and civil society
practitioners from 14 countries completed

- the programme. \

Lumos has been working with UNICEF in Panama since
2018 to reform the child protection system and to
promote the rights of children in Panama to live in a
family. During the last year, we supported the National
Secretariat for Children, Adolescents and Family

" (SENNIAF) to develop and transform the government’s
approach to foster care. Following a review of Panama’s
protection system, analysis of foster care models
from Colombia, Uruguay and Costa Rica as well as
consultations with children, young people and families;
involved in foster care in Panama, the government .~
has now designed and published a new foster care '
programme. Representatives of national and regional '
government bodies, SENNIAF, protection officers and
NGOs involved in the provision of institutional care
received training on technical guidelines alongside
analysis of case examples and practical exercises
on specific activities involved in the foster care
programme. A pilot project particularly focusing on
supporting unaccompanied migrant children is now
being implementedin the province of Chiriquito
demonstrate how the programme will work in practice;
.and based on learning from the pilot, the programme
will then be rolled out to other provinces.

Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022 | 16
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CASE STUDY

THE WARMTH
OF A HOME |

yroucanifeellthe;warmthlofVivianasthomejthe]
(minute;youlsee hegface¥Shelivestintalhouseyinithe]
IwestlofiBogotalcolombiawithiheghusbandiher
threeladultchildrenYalnumbegofpetstandYmore]
ecentlySthregyoungichildrentwhomishetooklinto)

'umosiissupportingitheMichinlFoundation'sitoster
[nltemporaryifostercareisoitheycaniexperience
the carelandlloveloflafamilylenvironmentwhile;
reintegratediintotheinbirthifamilylVivianallearned|
iojointifenchildreniweregrownishespentlallotior
timefaloneYandishemissed,caring forfothersy

“BEING ABLE T HELP A CHILD
WHO IS IN A VULNERABLE
SITUATION AND WHO NEEDS CARE
IS VERY GRATIFYING TO ME,” SHE

SAYS. “| THOUGHT THAT IF | HAVE
THE TIME, THE DISPOSITION AND
THE WILL, WHY NOT?”

/
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It has been a steep learning curve. Sofia® (6 months), Carlos*
(12 months) and Sebastian® (3 years) all require different types
of care and routines. But the days are filled with laughter and
games as well as nursery rhymes such as‘La Vaca Lola’and ‘El
Sapo Pepe’ - with a musical accompaniment from the family
cats and dog!

For Viviana, the most rewarding part of being a foster mother
is knowing that the children will one day return to their own
families. She says she is motivated by knowing that her role is
temporary while the children’s own home is being transformed
into a safe place where they will feel loved

and protected.

gUHEREFAREAMANN{CHILDRENIWRO
NEEDJTHEAWARMTH{OFFATHON EXg
Prgo AYSNVIVIANASSEAM I LYGISYTHEMOSTT
< LIMRORTANTATHINGHINITHERWORLD!

EVERY.ONEINEEDSYATRARENTATOIKNOW,
THATATHEYAHAVERSOMEWHERETOLG0
ANDISOMEONBTOTATKYTON

i ] ) ’
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INFLUENCING CARE REFORN §

Building foundations for change

June 2022 saw Lumos’s two five-year programmes

in Haiti come to a close: the joint Building Enduring
Systems to End Trafficking (BEST) programme with
USAID on the prevention of trafficking into and

out of institutions, and our deinstitutionalisation
project reuniting children with their families and
communities. The deteriorating security situation in
the country, exacerbated in 2021 by the assassination
of the President and a 7.2 magnitude earthquake,
significantly impacted our Programme delivery and
prevented Lumos from conducting meaningful work
aligned with our mission. Following a comprehensive
analysis of all options, the Lumos Board of Trustees
made the decision in December 2021 to responsibly
exit from Haiti in 2022.

The deinstitutionalisation project was concluded by
the end of April 2022, with the live caseload of 208
children securely handed over to the Government,
while the closure of the BEST project was completed
by the end of June. Since we began working in Haiti
in 2015, we have supported the Government to carry
out assessments of 571 institutions and to document
25,723 children across the country, as well as to
develop and implement a five-year strategy tackling
trafficking in persons. We've also assisted with the
closure of 15 orphanages and placed 331 children in
family and community care. We've delivered training
on deinstitutionalisation to 215 stakeholders, as well
as training 291 stakeholders on issues related to
trafficking and victim support. We've also provided
direct support to 297 survivors of trafficking and
persons at risk of trafficking, as well as supporting
the creation .of 13 anti-trafficking taskforces or 's"ulge
committeds across the country. During our time iny
Haiti we have produced many reports, organised **
national conferences, participated in international \
advocacy and influenced US donors to allocate $6
million to fund the deinstitutionalisation process in
the country. \
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SUPPORTING A NATIONAL CARE REFORM PROCESS

Nearly half of Kenya's population of 47.6 million is made
up of children. Approximately 3.6 million children are
classified as orphans or vulnerable children, and around
9.5 million children are deprived of more than three

basic rights. Kenya is overly reliant on institutional care,
with around 45,000 children living in more than 850,
mostly privately funded, residential institutions. However,
government and civil society share a commitment to
reform the care system, and Lumos is supporting the
development and implementation of care reform through
advocacy, training and technical support. In June 2022, the
Kenyan Government launched the National Care Reform
Strategy, in which Lumos played a key developmental
role and the implementation of which we are supporting.
Over the last year, we have reviewed and contributed to
national legislation, regulations and policies - including
the Children’s Act 2022 - Children’s Act 2022 - supported
the drafting of a National Parenting Manual; provided
awareness training on care reform to 30 organisations;
and provided training to the directors of 58 residential
institutions which currently host over 3,000 children.

We are also implementing a pilot care reform project

in Embu County, where we have begun an assessment
and mapping of services to support the development of
county-level action plans so that children can transition
safely from institutions into the community. Grace
Mwangi, Senior Technical Advisor, said: “This [pilot
project] is important because we will be able to drill
down and develop a proof-of-concept to show how
care reform can be carried out in a holistic, safe and
systematic way.”

REFORMING CARE FOR CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES

During 2022, Lumos continued to support the
deinstitutionalisation of Jordan’s care system for children
and adults with disabilities, working with our partner
NI-CO. The aim is to move people from long-stay care
centres into family or community-based care through the
provision of community services such as day care, family
support, small group homes, alternative family services,
and respite care services. Around 580 children and adults
currently living in care centres will be moved out of the
centres and placed back in their families or in alternative
community-based services. In 2022, Lumos provided
bespoke training, workshops and consultations, as well
as developing tools, delivering technical guidance and
mentoring national teams on the deinstitutionalisation
process. This included providing technical support to Al
Amal and Karak Care Centres and training 36 practitioners
to assess the needs of children and young people with
disabilities and develop individual transition plans. In
addition, 18 ‘champions’across Jordan were trained to
support the transformation of the care system for children
with disabilities and their families. As Bisser Spirov, Senior
Technical Advisor explains: “System reform is a long-
term process that depends not only on the experience
of foreign experts, but also, to a very large extent, on
the activity and expertise of local champions

and experts.”

.
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CASE STUDY

DRIANA
TORY

At the age of three-and-a-half, Adriana*, a little girl
living in the Floresti region of Moldova, could hardly
walk. To even conquer just a few steps, she relied on
her mother. Adriana was born with cerebral palsy,
and in addition to her physical needs, she also has
trouble communicating. Without the right support,
at this age Adriana’s vocabulary matched that of a
16-month-old, and she was unable to pronounce
words correctly.

Lumos supported Adriana and her family to

seek assistance from the Lumos-supported Early
Childhood Intervention Centre in Floresti, where
after only a few sessions with the speech and
physical therapists, Adriana showed great signs
of improvement. Specialists from the Centre also
supported Adriana’s mother, teaching her how to
conduct exercises at home.

Today, Adriana is able to walk by herself, and can
climb up and down stairs independently. She is even
attempting to run! Her speech has also significantly
improved; her vocabulary now corresponds to that
of a 3-year-old, and she is able to communicate with
people outside herimmediate family.

21 | Lumos Foundation,Annual'Report 2022
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GLOBAL CHALLENGES

“LUMOS HAS BiG AMBITIONS T0
TRANSFORM CARE SYSTEMS AROUND
THE WORLD. TO MAKE THIS HAPPEN,
WE NEED TO KEEP OUR EYES ON THE
BIGGER PICTURE: THAT INCLUDES
BUILDING OUR KNOWLEDGE OF —
OTHER ISSUES WHICH RELATE T0
INSTITUTIONALISATION, AS WELL
AS WORKING WITH NEW AND
DIFFERENT STAKEHOLDERS - SUCH
AS PHILANTHROPISTS - T0 MAKE
REAL CHANGE FOR CHILDREN.”

| LUCY HALTON, ADVOCACY AND CAMPAIGNS MANAGER
) and,campaigning}
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careglandpromotethechangesineededinpoliciesy
(ithithelovelandisupportoffafamily:
GLOBAINTHEMATICREVIEW[ONEDUCATION
ANDIINSTITUTIONALISATION
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and/practiceichange initheleducationtand carelsectorsXing
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holding lan‘eventiinlMoldova¥8y;engaging,withla
[relevantiactorstincluding ourpeerstinithelcarereformisector,
alongiwithlnew partaersiinithe globaleducationlsectorsy
andsupportingjthemiioconsidenihesvaysihatthistissue
elateshoheinownworkiwehopejoensurethelongeviy
ofthispiecelofworkiandipreventthelprojectifromlbeing
Simplyfaleporiithatsitsonlaishelfundsed]

. :“
l. =

b

et 5 ’
P . . \‘i
‘A

o
\
\

= 1N
: T
IR
- “I y “
] N Q‘\
N A

r
&

A\
{

3
L A Y
5
N )
. N IE3T0 ¢ -
[ .
\\,\ga :
| NSRRI
\1, S e 1hérr,
) 5% NV
. R re -~
)

. } des N

). 1 9" \‘\~\.‘.g"
k]

3 AR




Lumos Foundation Strategic Repor(‘ftf\\hd d 31 December 2022

Redirecting Funding campaign

One of the biggest challenges hindering care
reform is the funding that flows into institutions
and from all over the world - much of it private
funding (including philanthropic spending).

This campaign aims to see existing funding, as
well as new funding, redirected towards family
and community-based services, in order to keep
families together and instigate global care reform.
To help guide the campaign, Lumos established

a Youth Advisory Board with representatives

from Colombia, Kenya and Moldova. As Lucy
Halton, Advocacy and Campaign Manager, says:
“The participation of young people with lived
experience of institutional care is at the heart
of this campaign.” In November 2022, a microsite
was launched at a collaborative session with a
small group of philanthropists, to seek their input
and better understand their experiences. The
campaign aims to take high net-worth individuals
on a’learning journey’ by questioning the view
that orphanages and similar institutions are a
social good, raising awareness about the harms
of institutionalisation, and supporting them to
make a public pledge not to fund institutions

and to safely and sustainably support family

and community-based alternatives. In 2023, the
campaign will begin targeted engagement with
stakeholders from the wider funding environment
to empower them to better facilitate care reform.

[PumosiEotndationfAnntaliReport0.228.
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UKRAINE EMERGENCY RESPONSE

vulnerable children;(especiallychildrenwith/disabilities

“THE WAR HAS SUDDENLY BROUGHT
AN INCREDIBLY TRAUMATIC C——
EXPERIENCE TO ALL OF US, BUT ONE
THAT IS ESPECIALLY TRAUMATIC

FOR CHILDREN.”
. _ Institute®We maintained partnershipswith'and provided
- d

m D i‘l I[ﬂ m l 0 D A | technical supportito.government.-bodiesand participate
l“ l nC! PROPRA r in,working groups'and networks including,the,National
alll "

—
= X2

Child Protection.Coordination,Committeefcontributing

theinfamilies’at.the;onset of,the conflict¥An'assessment
ofjthe situation’of§i’300 children found,that more than'a
third of,families would not be.returningtheinchildren;to

an institutionfand one baby,home,was’closed altogether:

Lwill train hundreds of specialists.in mwgion SO
that they,will be'able to help thousands of children

10,958 children‘and and!3/582 parentsand after,carers:
Additionally}1 60 fostercarers,were trained,on

supported i
5,971families with,food'and.non

ylearning,to28 Inclusive,Resource,Centres,to
support-childrenwith'additional needs!
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UKRAINE EMERGENCY RESPONSE

people,who'draw,on
fopchildrenslrightsTand care reformAThroughout
20228 we continued;toproviderregulagsupportto]
selfradvocatesito’developrand’disseminateladvocacy;
(media postsyreflectingtheirattitudetothescrisis\Due]

these,young,peoplefopnowlbutihopeg,toresumewhen
circumstancestallow!

Supportinglrefugeelchildrenfandfamilieslin]

When theywanbegantinlEebruary?2022§lumos)
" 5 . o

extending services;to,thispopulation?
[conductirapidineedstassessments.fogmore;thant2}200]
UkrainianrefugeesThese'assessments formed,the)

basis of provisiontofihumanitariantaid'and;referralsito

ommunity;servicessWe distributedajtotaloft2,025

humanitarianiaid packagesi(to;497familieswithi965
children)lincludingjfood¥medicinelhygieng;suppliesy
clothinglandjschool itemsiWessupportedlit302lrefugee
childrenltofaccessieducationtsocialiandihealthlservicesy
[includinglsupportingithe enisimendofyiz8childrentn]

locallschoolsYreferringl3grefugee childreniwithispeciall

psychogsocialisupportitor2 Z7Zichildreniand, 9 parentsy

fand[setting.up,Romanian language'classes fogchildren

professionalson
topics including

refugee.children¥and theieducationallinclusion'of

refugee,children?
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Elena*®, who was heavily pregnant, was initially reluctant
to leave her home in Ukraine. When it became clear that
her home city of Odesa was going to be attacked, she
and her husband Vasili* made the difficult decision that
she would flee to Moldova with their four daughters.
Vasilii stayed behind to look after an elderly

family member.

Shortly after arriving in Moldova, Elena gave birth to
a little boy, Bogdan®. The family initially stayed in a
placement centre with around 40 other refugees. The
children were able to make some friends, but they
missed their home terribly.

“We miss our house, our dad, our cats, our dogs, our
friends,” said Roxolana® (15), the eldest child. “We're
glad we managed to flee before the bombing of
Odesa started. We’ve met children who are not that
lucky - whenever they hear any loud sound now,
they run away looking for a safe place to hide.”

The family fled Ukraine with just the clothes on their
backs. Along with food, hygiene items and other
emergency aid, Lumos has provided the family with
clothes for different seasons, as well as a pram for little
Bogdan.

The family stayed in Moldova, supported by

Lumos, for three months, before Vasilii was able to be
reunited with his family - and meet his son for the
first time. The family have now relocated to another
European country, where Vasilii has

found work and the children are going to school once
again.

The family is safe, but they think of home every day.
“No matter how good itis, | really want to go back to
my hometown,” Elena says. “I'm eagerly anticipating

the end of the war so we can return home. Even if our
house is destroyed and we have to rebuild it - | dream

of being at home and living in peace”

RV EDLL KETONTHANKEAUIRTHOSE
WHOJHAVHHEUREDJANDIWHO]CARE
USSANDISRECIFICALLY
[UMOS{EORTAIATHEIRSSUBPORTA
MYSELERANDIMHCHILDRENIARE
VERY{GRATEFUIMANDIASISOON]
ASYTHEAWARIENDSTANDIPEACHS
RESTOREDAWHUO0KIEORWARDATO
LOUMISITINGIUSIINIUKRAINES

“NAMES CHANGED.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Statement of risks and uncertainties

Lumos maintains a corporate risk register, prepared in accordance with Charity Commission
Guidance. This register is reviewed and updated every six months by the Executive Leadership
Team; it is then shared quarterly with the Finance and Risk Committee and the Board. There -
is dedicated risk session with the Board once a year. Additional risk sessions are mcluded in
Board meetings where appropriate. :

Lumos Corporate Risk Register (CRR) includes risks across five categories: strategic and
reputational, operational, compliance, financial and governance.

As well as the corporate risk register, the Finance and Risk Committee receives quarterly
updates on wider risk management activity and explares individual risk areas. The Committee
also reviews the charity’s overall risk management artangements on an annual basis.

In 2022, Lumos continued to update risk managemént arrangements and strengthen

internal processes. Lumos continues to build upon‘good practice in the areas of security and
safeguarding. Particular attention has been paid to the additional risks associated with the
operations in Ukraine and Moldova given the evident security considerations. Lumos will take
further steps to review and update its internal riskmanagement policy to better reflect the
inherent risks associated with working in areas of conflict and civil unrest.

~

The charity has identified the following key risk and uncertainties: ~ - -

1) Poor fundraising performance and a lack of income diversity

N
Mitigations: New team structure and capacity to diversify income streams and provide
effective line management and support to retain staff. Strengthening of processes to
manage restricted funds in line with strategic priorities. Greater scrutiny of and support to
fundraising plans and performance by the finance team, executive leaders and the Board of
Trustees. Income diversification to include institutional, corporate and major donors. Effective
monitoring across all income streams, i.e. monthly reporting against KPIs and variance against
budget forecast.

2) Recruitment, retention and managing reduced staff capacity

Mitigations: Employing additional human resources into core functions. Deprioritising
non-essential or non-generativé-activities which sit outside of the core strategic objectives.
Development of new policies, systé’ms and procedures, including a new EDI statement.

3) Reputational risks and negative l\ﬁedia interest in the chariiy

\
Mitigations: stakeholder management and communications. Partner, founder and contractor
due diligence with associated compliance, momtormg and reporting processes, crisis
response protocols. Increase Lumos's proﬁle as an independent-charity/NGO and report on
impact and development. , R

Ky
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. AN
4) Safety and security risks of personnel operating in high risk countries

Mitigations: Regular ongoing security assessments enable rabid analysis of changing
circumstances and adaptation of programming, including cessation of activities when
appropriate. Regular disbursement of smaller amounts of funds to partners to tighten
financial controls. Security- Contingency plans regularl&w\pdated.

5) Safeguarding risks: the risk of harm to children and ‘E-:{lults
Mitigations: Additional capacity provided to safeguarding team and improvements made

to safeguarding due diligence guidance and protocols. Review and implementation of the
global safeguarding policy and related reporting protocols with associated programme staff
and refresher training. Strengthening of integration of safeguarding into programme design
and reporting.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Lumos financial resylté summary 2022 2021 -
A \' £'000 £'000
Total income v 7,149 4,944
— Funds from;individual giving 2,967 1,178
- . Grantincome " 2,023 1,695
~ ~
—  Income from royalties 1,856 1,820
~  income from trading activities 230 172
—. Investment and other income 73 79
Total expenditure 7,410 8,18‘2
— Charitable ac‘:tivities 5,961 6,735 -
— Cost of raisiﬁg funds 1,449 1,576
i
— Release of lease incentive accrual - (129)
Other gains 204 113
Net Funds movement (57) (3,125)
Reserves carried forward 3,549 3,606 ‘
— Unrestricted 2,940 3,246
— Restricted 609 360

A summary of the year’s results can be found on page 47 of the attached accounts.

-
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During 2022, Lumos implemented the restructuring of its operation and reduction in
headcount as part of the change programme agreed in 2020. The aim was to maintain a
sustainable platform for future operations and overall strategy being pursued, and phased
implementation in line with resources.

Outside the strategy scope, the war in Ukraine led Lumos to drive an appeal in early February
2022 to provide humanitarian aid and focus resources and activities to support children in
Ukraine. : :

In addition, Lumos successfully delivered the BEST Programme and closed the Haiti offices.
Investment policy and performance

Lumos’s funds available for investment are managed by Close Brothers Asset Management
(CBAM), who have been carefully selected by the Board and mandated to manage such funds
to protect the value of the funds as they are drawn down to fund the planned growth. This is
done through investment in a diversified portfolio of equities, bonds and alternative assets.
CBAM:'s positioning and performance are formally re\"'/iewed by the Board’s Finance & Risk
Committee quarterly. The funds held by CBAM are managed in accordance with the charity’s
Investment Mandate, which is set by the Trustees

At year end, funds mahaged by CBAM on behalf of Lumos amounted to £567k. With
inflationary pressures exacerbated by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, global Central Bankers
embarked on one of the most aggressive interest h|k|ng cycles on record. This significant
structural shift was felt acutely across all asset classes: investors in“low risk” government
bonds experienced the worst peak to trough drawdown in UK government.bond prices'and
equity markets suffered a material derating to reflect the higher interest rates. The portfolio’s
focus on shorter duration bonds helped to cushion the decline as did the underweight
position in high growth equity sectors. The portfolio benefitted from expdsure to the
renewable energy sector (wind and solar) and to gold, with Healthcare shares (including
Astrazeneca and Bristol Myers Squibb) also providing positive contributions.

Fundraising policy

Lumos ensures compliance.with regulations on the protection of donor information and
use of personal data. The protection of children at the heart of our mission extends to our
supporters and the public, to ensure all individual preferences of donors are upheld, and no
one is unduly pressured to donate to Lumos.

We are registered with the Furldraising Regulator and adhere to their Code of Fundraising
Practice for all fundraising events; activities and interactions with donors. In 2022, there were
no fundraising complaints. N

Our income is affected by external fac\t\o\rs such as the ongoing war in Ukraine, fluctuations in
the economy, royalty payments donated by our Founder, changing donor priorities and public
trust in charities, all of which we monitor El\osely and respond to-through our in-year plans.
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Reserves policy and going concern. \

The Trustees balance a prudent reserves policy, whi&b ensures that Lumos has sufficient funds
to complete ongoing activities in the event of a significant fall in income and strengthening
and increasing the impact-of the organisation. \

The charity holds sufficient unrestricted funds for the follffvzing purposes:

. .\\ »
To mitigate the principal financial risks facing Lumos - -

-

In terms of income, this includes the risk that income does not match organisational
expenditure growth. In addition to fundraising risk, there are also risks of stock market
variations, which may negatively impact the value of the investment portfolio and future
levels of return. "\ :

To enable Lumos to brovide emergency response services

There are S|tuat|ons that can arise throughout the year where an immediate response is

required before mcome is received from fundraising activities.

"\
To support working capital funding requirements

1
In a number of Lum;os' prograrhmes expenditure is made prior to claiming the expense from
the donor, usually on a quarterly basis. Lumos also receives a sizable amount of income in the
second half of the year which has an impact on the cash flows of the charity.

To help to protect Lumos work beyond the current year

In the event of a sustained downturn in income, Lumos would require a period of time to
make adjustments to programmes in order to minimise any related impacts to children. This
includes the established country demonsfration programmes in Europe, Latin America and
the Caribbean programmes in Haiti and Colombia, and technical support that is provided to a
number of countries around the world, where Lumos does not have a physical presence.

Finally, Lumos retams funds to maintain its 100% pledge to the public, so that no portion of
their donation is used to fund overhead costs.

Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022 | 36



Lumos Foundation | Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2022

Restricted funds £0.6m (2021: £0.4m)

Restricted funds are funds with specific restrictions imposed by donors. These restrictions
often relate to a particular geographic region or area of technical expertise and sometimes
include a deadline by which time the funds must be spent.

Unrestricted funds £2 9m (2021: £3.2m)

Unrestricted funds mcludes tangible and intangible ﬁxed assets of £0.1m (2021 £0.3m) and
readily realisable free reserves of £2.8m (2021: £2.9m).

Our target base level of free reserves is equivalent to. approxnmately 3 to 6 months operating
expenses, which is £1.4m to £2.8m.

3
Y

Conclusion

)

Given the level of reserves and the prudent steps taken in 2021 and Sprind‘202'2 to align our
operations and resources to our programmatic and ﬁnanaal strategy, the Trustees are satisfied
that the charity will remain a going concern in the foreseeable future.

37 | Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022

23,

R
WY



\
YA

\

\
Lumos Foundation | Trustees' Report for the year ended 31 December 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE R
AND MANAGEMENT i

Governing document and objects ‘ \

Lumos was incorporated as a charitable company Ilmlted\by guarantee with no share By
capital on 3 November 2005 and is based in London. It is regrstered in England under -~
company number 05611912 and is registered with the Charlty Comm|55|on under charlty
number 1112575. Ce
Lumos is governed by its Articles of Association dated 3 November 2005 as reviewed and
amended from time to time most recently in December 2021. Lumos'’s objects as stated in its
Memorandum and Artlcles of Association are as follows:

- The relief of poverty and sickness; the promotion of education; the promotion of child

health and deveélopment; and the prevention of cruelty to or maltreatment of children in

any part of the world. )

- Such other exclusively charitable objects as the Trustees in their absolute

discretion determine.

x

As part of the organlsatlonal review completed during 2020, the updated mission and vision
statements of the Charity were updated as follows: (i) vision: all children grow up in safe and
loving families; (i) mission: to fight for every child’s right to a family, by transforming care
systems around the world. ;

Related organisations

Lumos Foundation Operations Limited was incorporated as a private company limited by
shares on 18 December 2019 (England an,,,c'i Wales). Its sole member and thus its parent
company is Lumos Foundation. Lumos Foundation Operations Limited operates as a trading
entity for Lumos Foundation and donate§ its distributable profits to Lumos Foundation.

Lumos Foundation USA Inc. was incorporated in New York, USA, on 6 November 2015, and
obtained 501(¢)3 noh- profit status on 27 March 2015, Lumos Foundation USA Inc. is included.
in the consolidated accounts on the basis that Lumos Foundation exercises influence and
control over Lumos Foundation USA Inc. in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102.

Friends of Lumos USA Ltd was incorporated as a charitable company limited by shares on

* 20 March 2015 and was dormant until 31, March 2016. The sole member of thé company,

and thus its parent entity, is Lumos Foundation USA Inc. Friends of Lumos USA Ltd is a dual
qualified charity that permits individuals to obtain tax relief in the United States and also in
the United Kingdom, thus enabling U.S. citizens and green card holders resident in the United
Kingdom to support Lumos’s objectives in a tax-efficient manner.

The Lumos Foundation USA Inc. statement of financial activities results for 2022 are a surplus

of £739k. During the year, Friends of Lumos USA Ltd was effectively dormant and remains
under review.
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Trustees

The Board of Trustees of Lumos Foundation administers the charitable company. The Board meets
at least four times a year and provides strategic direction to the work of Lumos. The Trustees make
decisions by a majority vote.

Trustees give their time freely, receiving no remuneration or other financial benefit.

ATrusteeis a mem.ber"of the Board of Trustees of Lumos and a director for the purposes of the
Companies Act 2006. The Trustees who held office during:the year are listed at page 71.

All Trustees must be members of the charitable company. The maximum number of Trustees is ten.
Following the Governance Review the Trustee recruitment process was strengthened including
ensuring external advertising for future appointments. Lumos currently has eight Trustees, selected
to provide a mix of skills necessary to Lumos. All Trustees are given an induction programme and are
offered opportunities for appropriate training. : B '
During 2022, in addition to Board meetings, Lumos Trustees undertook considerable work through the
following Committees:

’

- Finance & Risk Committee

- People Committee

- Programmes and Safeguarding Committee
- Fundraising Committee

A system of Trustee appraisal operates via the People. éommittee A periodic Board skills audit is carried
out to determine the range of skills and experience which would be requ1red to fill existing gaps The
last such audit was in Q4 2020. ‘ . ;

Organisation . ‘ ! o
The Chief Executive Officer and Executive Leadership Team provide the Board with advice on the

strategic direction of the charity and manages operations on behalf of the Board and with the Board’s

guidance. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring all aspects of Lumos's work and -

regularly reporting progress to the Board.

Related parties and cooperation with other organisations A

\
None of the Trustees receive remuneration or other benefits from their work with the charity. Any
connection between a Trustee or senior manager of the charity with any related party is disclosed to
the full Board of Trustees. Related party disclosures take place annually as part of the external audit
process and any conflicts of interest are declared at each Board meeting.

N

Grant-making policy ‘ -

Whilst Lumos is not primarily a grant- Fnaking organisation, the charity does issue grants occasionally
to further its charitable objects. These grants tend to be in countries where Lumos does not have a
permanent base, or a sub-grant of a grant\rfcelved by Lumos.

Grants are issued only where an opportunlty has been |dentlﬁed where funding exists and when due
diligence has been carried out on the ability of\the grantee to deliver against the grant. All grants
follow Lumos’s standard internal procedures, opportunities are assessed by the Executive Team and
approved by the Chief Executive Officer and/or the:Trustees in line with Lumos's procedures.
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Investment powers and restrictions v

Under its Articles of Association, Lumos has the power t invest in ways that the Trustees see fit. The
Trustees have appointed investment managers, Close Brothers, to manage Lumos's investment funds.
Investment performance is managed by the Finance and Risk Committee.

hY

Pay policy for senior staff o

N
The Trustees consider that the Board of Directors (who are the charity’s Trustees), together with the
Executive team, comprise the key management personnel of the charity in charge of directing and
controlling, running and operating the charity on a day-to-day basis. All Trustees give their time freely
and no Trustee received remuneration in the year. Details of Trustees’ expenses and related party

transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts, notes 11 and 20 respectively.

Public benefit s

A\
The main activities undertaken by the charity to further its objects for the public benefit are described
further in this Report. Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in the Charities Act 2011
to have due regard to public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission.

In early 2022, Lumos was the victim of phishing fraud relating to prior year income which had been
accrued for. Lumos has insurance in place to cover for such events and received compensation in June
2022. P ’

X 1
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Trustees (who are also directors of the Lumos Foundation for the purposes of company
law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice
(United Kingdom Accountlng Standards).

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial:statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and
of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure,

of the charitable group for that period. In preparing these financial statements the Trustees are
required to: . \l

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently |

- Observe the methods and principles in the Charmes SORP (FRS 102)

- Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

- State whether applicable UK accounting standdrds have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained infthe financial statements N

- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accountlng records that are sufﬁcnent to show
and explain the charitable company’s transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy.at any time
the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to-ensure that the ﬁnancnal
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and the provisions of the charlty s constitution.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and the grdup and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

3\,\ —

} \

Insofar as each of the Trustees of the charity at the date of approval of this report is aware, there

is no relevant audit information (information needed by the charity’s audltor in connection with
preparing the audit report) of which the charity’s auditor is unaware. Each Trustee has taken all of
the steps that he/she should have taken as a Trustee in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the charity’s auditor is aware of that information.

Disclosure of Information to auditors .

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included in the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparatlon and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
Junsdlctlons N

The Trustees’ Report, including the S:(}ateglc Report was approved by order of the Board
of Trustees. AN i

OocuSigned by: A \
[mmymsa- . \ \
Carol Copland L
Chair of Trustees . AN

Lumos Foundation <
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT T0

THE MEMBERS OF LUMOS FUUNDATIUN

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lumos Foundation (the ‘parent charitable
company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year enfied 31 December 2022 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial activities, balance sheets, consolidated -
statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, mcludlng significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
\
In our opinion the financial statements:
« Give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the group and the parent charitable
company as at 31 December 2022 and of the group’s incoming resources and application
of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended; )

«  Have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice; and
« Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006.

Basis for opinion ~

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsnbllltles under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of. the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the group and parent charitable company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulﬁlled our other ethical resp0n5|b|llt|es in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that:the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for ou‘f opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the'work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties

" relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast §igﬁiﬁcant doubt

on the group or the parent charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respéct to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2606

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ The information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report which includes the Directors’Report
and the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and -

« The Trustees’ Annual Report which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strateglc Report
has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception \‘
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group'and the pa!rer'rt charitable

company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report and Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006

reqU|re us to report to you if, in our opmlon

. Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ The parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

. .-Certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

«" We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

i
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Responsibilities of Trustees oy

As explained more fully in the Statement ofTrustees Responsibilities set out on page 41, the
Trustees (who are also the directors of the parent char\ttable company for the purposes of
company law) are responsgble for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such\internal control as the Trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. AN -
— ’

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsnble for assessing the group
and the parent charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the group or the parent charitable company or to
cease operations, or»‘have no realistic alternative but to do so.

\

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditors under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance
with regulations mac:!é under that Act. . .

\ !
Our objectives are tc;‘obtain reasonable assurance about whether the group and parent
financial statement‘s} as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a ‘naterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements. i

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities,including fraud. The specnﬁc procedures for this
engagement and the extent to which these are capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud are detailed below.

Identifying and assessmg risks related to irregularities: :

We assessed the susceptibility of the group and parent charitable company’s financial
statements to material misstatement and how fraud might occur, including through
discussions with the Trustees, discussions within our audit team planning meeting, updating
our record of internal controls and ensuring these controls operated as intended. We

_evaluated possible incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial

statements. We identified laws and regulations that are of significance in the context of the
group and parent charitable company by discussions with Trustees, communication with
component auditors and updating our understanding of the sectors in WhICh the group and
parent charitable company operate.

Laws and regulations of direct significance in the context of the group and parent charitable

company include The Companies Act 2006 and guidance issued by the Charity Commission
for England and Wales.
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Audlt response to risks |dent|ﬁed

We considered the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our
audit procedures on the related financial statement items including a review of financial
statement disclosures. We reviewed the parent charitable company'’s records of breaches of
laws and regulations, minutes of meetings and correspondence with relevant authorities

to identify potential material misstatements arising. We discussed the parent charitable
company'’s policies and procedures for compliance with laws and regulations with members
of management responsnble for compliance.

During the planning meeting with the audit team, the engagement partner drew attention
to the key areas which might involve non-compliance with laws and regulations or fraud. We
enquired of management whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations or knowledge of any actual, suSpécted or alleged fraud. We addressed
the risk of fraud through management override of controls by testing the appropriateness of
journal entries and identifying any significant transactions that were unusual or outside the
normal course of business. We assessed whetherjudgements made in makmg accounting
estimates gave rise to a possible indication of management bias. At the completion stage of
the audit, the engagement partner’s review included ensuring that the team had approached
their work with appropriate:professional scepticism and thus the capacity to identify non-
-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.

As group auditors, our.assessment of matters relating to non-compliance with laws or
regulations and fraud differed at group and component level according to their particular
circumstances. Our communications with component auditors included a request to‘identify
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud\that could giveriseto a
material misstatement of the group financial statements in addition to our risk assessment.
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and:‘the further
removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events ar\d transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk
of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the nsk of not detectlng
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery
or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s

website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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.\

Use of our report ) Y,

This report is made solely to the parent charitable company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compan\e\s Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the parent charitable company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s‘report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the parent charitable company and the parent charitable company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. S

UEHENTE

Claire Wills (Senior ﬁtatutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Saffery Champness

- Chartered Accounfap'ts

Statutory Auditors
71 Queen Victoria S‘tre‘et
London .

EC4V 4BE '

Date: 04 September 2023

‘ )

Saffery Champness is eligible to act ag .an auditor in terms of section 1212 of
the Companies Act 2006 :
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Consolidated statement of financial activities (lncludmg income and expendlture
account) for the year ended 31 December 2022

wn

Notes Unrestricted Restricted 2021
Funds Funds Total Funds Total Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Income from: i * '
Royalties K 1,856 — 1,856 1,820
Donations and Gift;Aid'? 1 1,3(:)3 1,6&4 2,967 1,178
Charitable activities '
Grant Income 2,18 106 1,917 2,023 1,695
investment income a1 _ 27 35
“ Income from Trading activities 230 - 230 172
Other income 's 47 52 44
Total income ’ l,' ' - .
) 3,521 3,628 7,149 4,944
:
Expenditure on: . i
Raising funds: 4 ! ' h
Ralsing funds and donor -~ . '
communication costs 1,444 - 1,444 1,562
Investment management costs . P
: .5 T~ - 5 "~ 14
Release of lease incentive ™~ i \
= - ' = (129)
Charitable activities ’ ) S 2,582 3[3'79 "5,9'51 6,735 .
Total expenditure . o N
4,031 3,379 7,410 8,182
N
~ ; \‘
- ]
Other recognised {losses)/gains: ! ~
.
. - . \‘
Net (loss)/gain on investments 14 (91) - (91) 91
j ~
Exchange rate gains 295 - 295 22
Net movement In funds ~ {308} 249 (57)’ (3,125)
Recondiliation of funds: . \\\ \ !
Total funds brought forward
3,246 . 360 3,606 6,731
\ '
i \ '
Total funds carried forward ] 19\ 2,940 609 3,549 3 606

. \ . :
All the charity’s activities are derived from continuing operations during the two financial
periods. The charity has no recognised gains or losses other than those shown above.
\.
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[}

Consolidated balance sheets as at 31 Degenfber 2022
ol

Ty

P R OB Goupzon o
N £000 £000 £000 £°000
\\ ,
Fixed assets: J . \
' ) . \ ,
Tangible assets o 13 \\135 135 235 235
Intangible assets ’ 13 } i§ ' 15 62 62 - -
Investments 14 567 - 567 1,645 s
717 Tom 1,942(__/"' 1,942
Current assets and liabilities: N
Debtors - - 15 1,447 1,492 1,740 1580
Short-term deposit \ - . 9 - 9 -
Cashatbankandinhand - 2,547 2,180 690 516
K ) 4,003 3,672 2439 ° 2,096
Creditors: i ',
Amounts falling due withih ong year , 16 3) (852) (3,875) (664) - (2,702)
Netcurrentassets Y\ 3,151 (203) 1,775 (606)
Total assets less current Iiatiiiiitigs 3,868 514 3,717 1,336
Amounts falling due in moq'a th'aﬁ one year’ 16 b) (124) - (111) -
Provislon; for liabilities and‘charges =t ~ 17 (195) (195) - . -
Net assets = T~ 3,549 319 3,606 1,336
) i
Funds: . -
Restricted funds 18 609 " 584 360 345
Unrestricted funds _ ! 1 2,940 (265) 3,246 991
! :
Total funds 3549 319 3,606 1,336 =

A M 't

. g {
As permitted by section 408 of the Comp!anies Act 2006, a Statement of Financial Activities for

the charity has not b\een presented.
- M

The Lumos Foundation charity statement ‘of financial activities results for 2022: £1 021k deficit
(2021: £3,768k deficit). X

_Approved and authorised for issue by the'Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

i

200348B4E335454, EE4FIDCBFF1841C...

Carol Copland Nitin Pasricha
Trustee Trustee
Date: 06 July 23

N

Lumos Foundation :
Registered Company Number: 05611912 (England and Wales) Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022 | 48
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Lumos Foundation - - » ~ :
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022
Notes 2022 2021
£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities :'- . A 1,04'{ (1,853)
Cash flows from Investing angtIes: ‘
Dividends and interest from investments o : 21 35
Purchase o'f‘tangibl'e fixed assets (2) (25)
Proceeds from the disposal of investments i 960 101
Purchase of investments ‘\__ ) (69)_ {103)
" Netcash provided by investing activities \‘_ 910 8
i .
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year !'_ 1,957 {1,845)

) Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2022 '-4-; B 811 2,747
Change In cash and cash equlva!en"ts due to exchange rate mover}nents (196) (91)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2022 E B 2,572 811

s I
- "~
~
. i \
‘ | IR
|
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L
. | \
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Notes to the statement of cash flows for th

\

1

L

e.year to 31 December 2022

A) Reconciliation of net movement in funds to ﬁ\et“‘c\ash used in operating activities

\ 2022 2021
\ £'000 £'000
J . \
Net movement in funds (as per the statement of financial actlvities) (57) {3,125)
AN
: A\
Adjustments for: ! “
:\_ ;»’ =
Depreciation charge e _ 149 . -"209
Exchange rate loss Voo 196 .~ 91
Losses/(gains) on investments 91 (91)
Dividends and interest from investments (21) (35)
Grant of fixed assets l\ . _ 660
Decrease in debtors 293 949
Increase/(decrease) in creé’!itors 201 (511)
. hY H ~
Increase in provision p( »Iiviabiliities and charges 195 _
Net cash provided by/(uged in) operating activities 1,047 {1,853)
I .
B) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
\ ) N
~ ™~ 2022 2021
—~- - - £'000 €000
Cash at bank and in hand ; 2,547 690
Cash held as current asset short-term deposits a , ) 9 9
Cash held by inve_stment managers i 16 112
Total cash and cash equivalents :5 2,572 811
. v i
C) Analysis of changes in net debt ’ ;
‘ ot At 31 December Cash flows  Foreign exchang At31D b
) . 2021 movements 2022
1 £000 £/000 £000
X - ) .l 4
Cash at bank and in hand ' 579 1,844 _ 2,423
Cash equivalents v 121 (97) 1 25
Loans falling due after more than one year ! 111 _ 13 124
Total * 811 1,747 T 14 2,572
. . _ Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022 | 50
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUITING POLICIES | o

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of Lumos Foundation, which is a public benefit entity under Financial
Reporting Standard 102, have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost
convention, in accord@née with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland, Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102), the‘Charities Statement of Recommended
Practice (FRS 102), the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The Consolidated Statement of
. Financial Activities (SOFA) and Balance Sheet consolidate the financial statements of the Charity-and its
subsidiary undertakings. The prior year balance sheet has been restated to split out the creditor due in
over one year. The accounts are rounded to the nearest thousand and the functional currency is Great
British Pounds. The principle accounting policies, which have been applled consistently in the year, are

set out below. \\
1

'
3

Consolidation

_.. \
The results of the subsudlanes are consolidated on a Ime—by-lme basis. No separate SOFA has been
presented for the Charity alone, as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Charity
has also taken the exemption under FR$102 1. 12(b) not to include a parent only cash flow statement in

these accounts. N

The Board of Lumos Foundation USA Inc. exercises discretion and control over all funds received
by Lumos Foundation USA Inc. There is a concurrence of purpose between Lumos Foundation USA
Inc. and Lumos. There is also an agreement between Lumos and Lumos Foundation.USA Inc. which
governs the use of Lumos name and trademark that allows Lumos's strategic influence in;and
agreement on certain operational matters of Lumos Foundation USA, Inc. w\or‘ldwgde AN

H \
H

The sole member of Friends of Lumos USA Ltd, and thus its parent entity, is Lurﬁos’ Foundation USA Inc.

Lumos Foundation Operations Limited operates as a trading entity for Lumos Foundatuon and ]
donates its distributable profits to Lumos Foundation. Its sole member and thustits: parent company is
Lumos Foundation.

l
Group accounts are therefore prepared consolidating Lumos Foundation USA Inc and Lumos
Foundation Operations Limited.

-

Accounting estimates and areas of judgement

In the application of the Lumos Foundations accounting policies, Trustees are required to make
judgements, estimates, assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are

not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical-experience and other-factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may dlffer
from these estimates. -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on- gomg basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of t}ue revision and future periods if the revision affects the

current and future periods. \
\

\ DY
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In the view of the Trustees and management, the follc>wmg are the most significant accounting estimates
and areas of judgement: §
\
« Thejudgement that, subject td evidence to the contrar‘it, all expenditure incurred under a signed
funding agreement is recoverable from funders.
+ The judgement that there is no provision required for disallowed expenditure under donor funding

agreements. “
» Decisions around the recoverability of amounts included in debtors connected to royalties or other
debtors. T

« Judgements relating to the decision as to when a liability should be r recognlsed in relatlon to grants
payable to a third party .

« The value of any accruals included in the financial statements

» The basis for allocating costs between activities as disclosed in the financial statements.

Going concern
\

At 31 December 2022, Lumos had total funds of £3.5m (2021: £3.6m). The level of free reserves (in this
case being unrestricted e')'(cluding intangible and tangible fixed assets) at 31 December 2022 is £2.8m
(2021: £2.9m).

Given the level of reserves and the prudent steps taken in 2021 and Spring 2022 to align our dperations

* and resources to our programmatic and financial strategy, the Trustees are satisfied that the charity will

remain a going concern in the foreseeable future.
i

Fund accounting '

Unrestricted funds are funds which are available at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the
general objectives of the charitable company, and which have not been designated for other purposes.
Restricted funds are funds that are to be used in accordance with specific restrictions imposed by the
donors. The aim and use of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements. Where
grants are received for specific purposes, they are credited to restricted funds. Costs up to the value of the
grant relating to this restricted income are allocated against the income when the expenditure is incurred.
Unspent balances are carried forward to subseqyent years within the relevant fund.

Income recognition .

Income is included in the SOFA when the charitable company is legally entitled to the income, when it is
probable that the income will be received and when the monetary value of the income can be measured
with sufficient reliability: The following specific policies apply to the categories of income:

Royalty income is recognised on an accruals basis in the period to which the earnings relate, provided
that the charity is able to estimate the amount receivable prior to the date of approval of the financial
statements. Royalty income is stated net of Value Added Tax, overseas withholding taxes, returns
provisions and bad debt provisions. '

Donations are recognised when the charity has confirmation of both the amount-and settlement

date. In the event of donations pledged but not received, the amount is accrued for where the receipt
is considered probable. In the event that a donation is subject to conditions that require a level of
performance before the charity is entitled to the funds, the income is deferreéd and not recognised until
either those conditions are fully met, or the fulfilment of those conditions is wholly within the control
of the charity and it is probable that those conditions will be fulfilled in the reporting period. Gift Aid in
respect of donations is accounted for in the year in which the related donation is recognised.
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Investment income dividends receivable from the investment portfolio are included in the
SOFA in the period in which the charity is entitled to receipt. Interest receivable from cash at
bank is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the charity;
this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank.

Grant income is recognised as income in the SOFA when receivable. Income is deferred only if

the grant was subject to donor-imposed conditions that SpECIﬁed a future tlme period when

the expenditure of the resources should take place.

Investments: Iisted investments are initially recognised at their transaction value and
subsequéntly measured at their fair value as at the balance sheet date using the closing”
quoted market price.

Expenditure recognition .

1

Liabilities are recognised as soon as there is a legal orconstructive obligation committing
the charity to make a payment to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic
benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured
reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis. Irrecoverable VAT is added to the
appropriate underlying expenditure.

Fundraising and publicity costs: expenditure on fundraising includes the costs of seeking
all categories of income except those directly associated with charitable activities. Publicity
expenditures include the costs of disseminating ahd publicising the work of the charitable
company. Fundraising and communications costs have been allocated to the expenditure
categories based on estimates of time spent in the year. ~ “

Y

Investment management costs are recognlsed as they are payable to the |
investment manager. :

L\
Charitable activities are analysed into the major themes of the organisation, and comprise
expenditure related to the furtherance of the charitable company’s objects. Costs include the
direct costs relating to the overseas operations, branches and related projects, and allocated
support costs. '

Governance costs include those costs associated with meeting the constitutional and
statutory requirements of the charitable company and include audit fees, costs linked to the
strategic management of the charitable company and other compliance costs.

Support costs are those costs incurred in connection with the management and
administration of the charitable company. In 2021, costs were allocated on the following
bases:‘administration, legal andcompliance, human resources, information systems and
office services costs were allocated\"t}ased on head count; finance costs were allocated based
on expenditure. From 2022, all support costs have been allocated based on expenditure. The
prior year comparatives have not been\r\estated. '

\ ’
Pension costs contributions by the charifiﬁ\in respect of the group personal pension scheme
are included in the Statement of Financial Actlvmes when they are payable.

Grant liabilities are recognised once the chanty has a constructive or legal obligation to make
a payment.
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Other accounting policies R

1

. i B
Tangible and intangible fixed assets: the charitable company capitalises all assets with
a cost in excess of £1,000 that are to be held for con\tinuing use. Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is provided on all other tangible and intangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to
write off the cost less estlmated residual value of each gsset over its expected useful life,
as follows: '

A0\

\,
Buildings 30 to 50 years - e
Office equipment 5to 10 years ' \j
Fixtures and fittings 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements  Over the lease term until the break clause
Motor vehicles 7 years
Software E 5 years

\ |

Foreign currencies: monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign‘ currencies are
retranslated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Transactions
in foreign currencies are recorded in Sterling at the rate ruling at the date of the transactron

All differences are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities.

N\,

Lease commitments‘ rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of
Financial Activities on a straight-line basis over the Iease term. The benefit of a rent-free period
is spread evenly actoss the Iease term.

Debtors: trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any
trade discount offered. Prepayments are valyed at the amount prepaid net of any trade
discounts due.

Current asset - short-term deposit: current asset investments include cash on deposit and
cash equivalents with a maturity of less than one year held for investment purposes rather
than to meet the short-term cash commitments of the charity as they fall due.

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term cash commitments of the charity as
they fall due, rather:than for investment purposes.

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting
from a past event that will probably result in the transfer of funds to a third party and the
amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and
provisions are normally recognised at therr settlement amount after allowing for any trade

discounts due.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at transaction price (including transaction costs). The group only has financial assets
and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial instruments. With the exception
of fixed asset investments, basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction
value and subsequently measured at their settlement value.
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Notes to the financial statements
1) Donations and gift aid
Unrestricted Restricted 2022  Unrestricted Restricted 2021
Fiq&gla iy&% Total F;_'«‘Sgé : £000 £000 Tm'?"u%
Donations o 965 1,621 2,586 gsa - 884
Gift aid 266 a1 307- 4 - 4
Giftinkind " 72 T2 74 290 - 290
Total 1,303 1,664 2,967 1,178 - 1,178

i
}

Gift in kind compnses of governance and legal support for the group and the provision of

office space for Lumos USA.

2) Grantincome

e izee

A

\

o

Unrestricted Restricted 2022 Unrestricted Restricted 2021
Funds ! Funds Total Funds Funds Fur{ds Total Funds
] £ £ £ £000 £000 £'000
Trusts and foundations e ’ 102 , 377 " 479 34 562 596
Changing the Way We Care . - 3 3 - 74 74
United States Agency for International ~ . )
Development (USAID) 678 678 -~ 999
Ukraine Emergency Response — Ukraine and T H \\
- 807 807 = -\ -
Moldova . vt .
Grants from other governments and public bodies - 52 52 ,! 9 - 9
Other grants 4 - 4 \ - 17 17
1,917 2,023 a3 1,652 1,695

Total . 106

3) Subsidiaries

The activities of Lumos Foundation USA Inc. (557 Broadway, New York NY\‘1 0012, USA, IRS
Reference number 47-2301085) and its subsidiary Friends of Lumos USA Ltd (3rd floor, 86-90
Paul Street, London EC2A 4NE, UK, charity registration number 1170023, UK (England and
Wales) company registration number 09502092) are consolidated into the accounts of Lumos
Foundation. The net income for Friends of Lumos USA Ltd of £175 is included within the
consolldated summary ﬁnancnal performance of Lumos Foundation USA Inc. below:

,1' \

P
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3) Subsidiaries (continued) R
"‘-\‘ : 2022 2021
R £000 £000
income ' \\ 1,35§ 1,553
Expenditure : . A\ & (739) (851)
Surplus for the year ' ' . \ 619 702 -~ l’
Opening reserves ’ ‘ “ 2,316 1,589
Gain on foreign exchange ‘ 297 ) 25
Opening reserves aﬁer gain on foreign exchange - - 2,6137 1,614
Closing reserves' ~. ' 3,232_. 2,316
Recondiliation of funds \\
. Current assets K | ‘ . 34m 2,571
Current liabilities X (240) (255)
Net current assets = | A . ' 3,232 2,316

o~ ' ~\
' Durmg the penod Lumos Foundation provided a grant to Lumos Foundation USA Inc. of

£451k (2021: £640k) to cover administration and overhead costs in 2022. Lumos Foundation
USA Inc. prowded | grant to Lumos Foundation of £160k for the Ukraine Emergency Response
programme (2021: n|I)

TN
Lumos Foundatlon provuded donated services of £25k (2021: £19k) to Lumos Foundation
USAInc. - ;
At the year-end an amount of £2,999k (202 1: £2,218k) was due to Lumos Foundation USA Inc.
and Friends of Lumos USA Ltd owed to Lumos Foundation £18k (2021: £15k).

The activities of Lumos Foundation Opera{ions Limited (3rd floor, 86-90 Paul Street, London
EC2A 4NE, UK, company registration number 12369753) are consolidated into the accounts of

S,

A

—
-

T

Lumos Foundation. Activities started durmg 2021. :

The summary ﬁnané\iai performance of Lumos Foundation Operations Limited is below:

. 2022 2021
' £000 £000

Income v 230 184

Expendﬁum 1 (23) (12)

" Gift Aid to Lumos Foundation i "',(207) 172

Position for the year o ' . .

Closing reserves - .
Reconciliation of funds

Current assets 131 187

- Current liabilities ~ . (131) (187)

Net current assets

Lumos Foundation Annual Report 2022 | 56




- N - Tt ¥

Lumos Foundation | Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 -

~

3) Subsidiaries (continued)

Lo

During the year, Lumos Foundation chérged administrative expenses to Lumos Foundation
Operations Limited totalling £12k (2021: £12k).

At the year-end an amounht of £121k (2021: £187k) was due to Lumos Foundation, £207k is the
Gift Aid payable for 2022 (2021: £172Kk). )

.

4) Raising funds,* ’ '
_ :
© 2022 2021
0 Total funds | Total Funds
t i , £000 ' £°000
Raising funds and donor communication . ¢
Fundraising costs . ) \ 1,00i 1,130
P v . g
Donor communication costs . i . 81 41
- : T - "
Support costs (note 7) I V356 391
i 1,444 1,562 i
. Investment management fees ;- N ’ S. 14
Total o - ) 1,449 1,576
5) Charitable activities
Activities ) Suppont T -~ 2022 Activities ¢ ) ~~~— Support 2021
Undertaken Costs Total Funds Undertaken ~C Total Funds
Directly {note 7} N Directly (mm“ﬁ-\ .
. S a i \
£000 £000 £000 “ero00 i £000 \ £000
. A .
H ! - -
Deinstitutionalisation in Europe 712 263 975 1,481) 504 1,985
Deinstitutionalisation tn LAC : 1,076 523 1,599 . 1,752\ 644 2,396
- ‘ - — — — )
Global Deinstitutionalisation 1,925 847 2,772 c 0 1 1
Advocacy, tralning and research 427 188 615 1,776 583 2,353
T
Total 4,140 1,821 5,961 5,003 1,732 . 6,735 .
\
13
N
M
N
. e o ~. \.
>/ ~
s \u\__
AN ‘,'
\, {
N
\
D :
oy
N
!\' .
. \ e
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6) Grants payable : O L
. S
i Lo\
0 v " Gramstolinstitutions Grants to Institutions
\ 20227otal - 2021 Total
_ £000 £'000
; \
Peace Manifest - . 360 -
Catholic Relief Services i ; I 88 219 -
International Association of Women Judges . o 88 ) ~196
Save the Children Haiti _ ‘ Tt 34 -
Moldova — Small Group Homes ' - 660 .
Other e " ' 1 a
Total ! _ 571 1,122

3
A

As part of the Ukraine' Emergency Response programme, Lumos made grants to Peace
Manifest to provide food and hygiene packages.
Lumos made grants to Catholic Relief Services and International Association of Women Judges
‘as part of the Burldlng Enduring Systems to end Trafficking project in Haiti, which delivers
transformative progress on ending human trafficking, with a focus on child trafficking.
- Lumos made grants to Save the Children to support Lumos Haiti’s deinstitutionalisation

activities in Haiti. ’, LN

N N
During 2021, five Small Group Homes in Moldova were donated to local authorities.

i

r -

7) Support costs ! L7
~ Fumiraiﬁsl : CR&%?&!S 2022 Fdndrars'!ﬁg & mAa:ﬁ'\%ere 2021
Ry vy / tnotes)  TowlFunds Com;rlu?'::;tetov; noteS) Total Funds
£'000 /, £000 £000 X £000 £000 £'000
Admin, Legal and : 35 115 10 180 77 257
Compliance i A
Finance i 12 489 601 . 78 420 498
Human Resources ' n ., 436 507 2 362 384
tnformation Technology .1 . 69 80 8 142 150
Office Services ‘ w2 712 839 103 731 834
- Total 356 1,821 2,177 3917 1,732 2123

o

In 2021, the above costs were apportioned between activities based on an estimate of time
spent by staff on them. From 2022, all support costs are allocated based on expenditure. The
comparative figures have not been restated.
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8) Governance costs
. Y
2022 2021
£000 ¢ £000
Legal and Professional fees ) R 73 84
Other costs ) 7 N . ' 7 1
Total L 80 85
..'«'/:' b '
9) Net income for the year ‘
- if
‘ I
Net income for the year is stated after charging: -
- N : \ 2022 2021
-, \ £000 £000
: —
Group Auditor’s remuneration
) . /.
- Audit services - Group i ' 22 17
Audit services — Friends of Lumos USA ,.«’r 3 ' 3
Audit services — Lumos Foundation Operations Limited ! 5 .3
Advisory services L ¢ C . 2
Payroll and tax services { : . 2. 8
Lumos USA Auditor’s remuneration . LT T - - -
: ' N
. . ¢ b v
Audit services — Lumos USA : ' > - 10 9
| J
Other services i i 1
Depreciation of owned fixed assets ) \. ___149 208 .~
Operating lease rentals - - ' TN )
. | .
tand and building f 130 223
; {.
. A .
10) Staff costs and remuneration of key management personnel \
!
The staff headcount numbers for the period are as follows: ' e
T 2022 2021
7 .- . . S . No. No.
Management and administrative staff \'\.“ ' 22 34
o ;
. . . P W
Fundraising and donor communication'staff 5 . : 10 12
Programmes staff \ . A - o 39 72
AN |
Total \ 5 7 118
AN
vy
Loy
‘-{ )
. . —
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10) Staff costs and remuneration of key rhan'qge:gnent personnel (continued)
9=

i ' \
Staff costs relating to the above persons are as follows:

\'-
H o0 2022 2021
; \ £000 £'000
Wages and salaries ! } R : 2,909 3708~ -
Social security costs "\"\ - 398 . "A4'79
Pension costs SRR - 142 -~ ] 177
3,449 4,360
Agency staff 304 27
Total \ - o 3,753 4,387

1
The number of employees whose emoluments during the year exceeded £60,000 were:

. v : - ' -
S N o= T
£60,001-£70,000 | 2 5
£70,001-£80,000 | . ‘ - 2
£80,001- £90,000 o ~ 3 - 3
£90,001-£100,000 ' . ; - 2
£110,001 - £120,000 ' " L -
£120,001 - £130,000 ; | 1 =
Total ; . 7 12

Pension costs totalli\ng £30k (2021: £45k)~ii./vere paid in respect of the above employees.

The key management personnel of the Lumos Foundation comprise the Trustees, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Executive Team:The total employee remuneration (including
benefits) of the key management personnel of the charity was £578k (2021: £696k).

N

1
1

{
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10) Staff costs and remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

During the year the Trustees decided.to reduce the number of such staff as part of an
organisational restructure and this is reflected in the 2022 results.

During 2022, termination:payments were paid of £123k (2021: £37k). There was an increase for
2022 as a result of the restructure and closure of the Haiti office.

11) Trustees’ expenses and remuneration

No Trustée, nor any persons connected with them, received any remuneration from the
charitable company during the year (2021: £nil).

Expenses incurred by the Trustees and reimbursed by the charitable company amounted to
£89 for two Trustees’ travel expenses (2021: £nil). _ .
i

12) Taxation

B
; 4
3

Lumos Foundation is a registered charity and, therefére, is not liable to income tax or
corporation tax on income and gains derived from its charitable activities, as they faII within
the various exemptions available to registered chantles

”

4\\"
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13) Tangible and intangible fixed assets of Charity and Group
: . A
Intangible Fixed Tangible Fixed " Tangible Tangible Fixed Tangible’ Tangible and
Assets Assets Flxed Asgets. Assets Fixed Assets Intangible Fixed
t Assets
; A '
; Leasehold  Furniture, Fittings and
Software ¢ Land and Buildi imp \ Equipment Motor Vehicles Total
€000 £'000 . £000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2022 236 125 376 348 25 /1,110
Additions - - - 2~ e 2
Disposal - - {376) (166) - (542)
At 31 December 2022 236 125 - 184 25 570
Deprediation \ '
At 11anuary 2022 A 14 301 305 19 813
Charge for the year T e 3 75 20 4 149
Disposal - - (376) (166) - (542)
- Ar31December2022 , ! 221 17 - 159 3 a20
- T
.~ Netbookvalue - ~~~ \\.‘ -
At31December2022 ! 15 108 - 25 2 150
LT At 31 December 2021 b, e 11 75 43 6 297
; —
\ -
Lumos Foundation Land and Buildings’ opening position represents one property in Moldova,
the construction of which was funded by Lumos to support the delivery of children’s care
-7 services by local authorities there. It has always been the intention of the Trustees to transfer
the asset to Moldovan authorities for the furtherance of the charity’s objects, and to meet
contractual commitments provided at the time of funding. The grant of the property is
planned for 2024. ‘
- - .l‘ 1
} | '_
x f
\ -,
»
' '
!
3 .’/ t‘
H
I~
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14) Investments of Charity-and Group

. 2022 2021
-£000 £'000
Listed investments
Market value at 1 January 1,533 1,440
Additions at cost 69 . 103
. K2 ’
Disposals proceeds 7 : ! . (960) ~(101)
Net investment (loérses)/gains \ : (91)_ 31
Market value at 31 December i B 551 1,533
» »
- Cash held by investment managers for reinvestment . \ 16 112
: .
Total . , 567 1,645
; i \ :
- Listed investments held at 31 December 2022 were managed on behalf of Lumos by Close
Brothers and comprised the following: ;‘
h 2022 2021
. £000 * £000
UK fixed interest ' 150 628
UK equity ! 63 154
Overseas equity S T2 560
N N\,
Commaodities N 17 3 22
Property ! 18 37
Alternatives \' 75 116 -~
Multi asset _ 't \-\ ' 16 16
Market value at 31 December ‘ 551 1,533
Cost of listed investments at 31 December ; 505 1,300
- \ \ t
15) Debtors \\
Group Charity  * Group Charlty
2022 2022 ° 20m 2021
£000 £000 £/000 £000
Ve - - K
Other debtors . ‘\\ . 111 11 110 110
Prepayments \ 143 86 122 115
" Accrued royalty income : . : \\\ 953 953 937 937
Trade debtors and other accrued income \\ 240 136 571 418
3
Amount due from subsidiary undertaking ) N - 206 - —
Total \ D 1,447 1,492 1,740 1,580
L
.\~4
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16) Creditors: AN
a) Amounts fallmg due within one year \ v
\ .
voh S " Restated
v . + Group Charity - Group : Charity
s \ 1 2022 2022 2021 2021
: Y £000 £000 £000 £000
. Trade creditors oo O\ 119 - 102 162 156 .
Taxation and sacial security B . ‘o 3 3 4 a4
Accruals - A so 151 7132
Amounts due te subsidiary yndertaklngs . . S - 3,065 ' ; 2,063
N ; d
Other creditors '_ 115 s 201 201
Deferred income  ~ 507 507 56 56
Total o - 852 3,875 ‘664 2,702
N b) Amounts falling due in more than one year )
y
H Restated
N ! _ Group Charity Group Charity
i \ ! . ) 2022 2022 - 021 2021
. —_—Nd £000 £000 £000 £'000
“" Loan s.\ 124 - 1 -
Total : P ’ 124 - 11 -
\ E N
The £1 24k (2021:£11 1 k) falls due after more than five years. This consists of a COVID-19
Economic Injury Disaster loan taken up by Lumos Foundation USA Inc. The prior year has been
restated owing to this being included in amounts falling due within one year in 2021.
<) Analysis of deferred income ! -
: 7 _
- ;" ": Group Charity
; , : 2022 2022
e £
. \ i . .
At 1 January 2022 X E - 56 56
Recognised as income in ye\ar o . (49) (49)
Deferred in year ' .o 500 500
At 31 December 2022 o a . 507 507
: :
The £507k at 31 December 2022 (2021: £56k) consists of income received in the') year that
relates to the following year. The income deferred in 2022 relates to a donat:on the income
deferred in 2021 relates to royalty income. :
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IR '
i o~
Rt N\ :




?\ .. )
\ '\l\ . 7},
. R ) \\ e SCEPN ‘:
Lumos Foundation | Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 - ) B ' - ]
-
17) Provisions for liabilities and charges
Group . Charity -
2022 ’ 2022
£'000 £000 .
At 1 January 2022 ) - -
Charges in Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities - 195 195
At 31 December 2022 ) ' 195 - 195
- 4 ’ ’ \
Provisions include estimated probable future costs in respect of dilapidations. These are subject to
negotiations-in 2023.
i
. ]
18) Restricted funds ‘ ,
. % \
At1jan2022 » 1 Expend] At 31 Dec 2022
€ £'000 . £ £000
Redirecting philanthropic funding % ,| 152 S7 : 101 108
~ Education and child institutionalisation 7 94 62 132 24
Deinstitutionalisation — Colombia ' ” 48 106 154 - i
Ea‘rly childhood intervention - Motdova ! - 148 68 * 80
Ukraine Emergency Response — U_!ualrie and Moldova , - 2,441 2,087 354
Bullding Enduring Systems to end Trafficking (BEST) - !.‘ - 678 678 -
Haiti
Changing the Way We Care - - 3 B N -
Other 66 133. i 156 N 43
Total 360 3628 | 3379 609
Nl
At1Jan 2021 Income Bxpenditure At 31 Dec 2021
£'000 £'000 { \ £o000 £000 -
Redirecting philanthropic funding - 152 Z - 152
Education and child institutionalisation - 158 : 6 94
Child and youth ﬁanidpation - Bulgaria, Czech Republic, 87 8S ,l 3 172 - .
Moldova g
Deinstitutionalisation ~ Colombia 52 157 \ 161 48
Building Enduring Systems to end Trafficking (BEST) - - 999 9\99. -
Haiti -
Changing the Way We Care™ ~ * - 74 74 -
Other .~ R 102 43 79 66
Total -~ \ 241 71,668 1,549 360
-
\.
A T
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18) Restricted funds (continued) Y |
Restricted funds are funds with specific restrictions imposed by donors. These restrictions often relate
to a particular geographic region or area of technical expektise and sometimes include a deadline by

which time the funds must be spe'nt. )

« Redirecting philanthropic fundlng

Lumos is running a campaign, funded by UBS Optimus Foundation, that focuses on the funding flows of
philanthropy into institutions with the aim to redirect this funding into famlly strengthening and aIternatlve care
services. . N o

« Education and institutionalisation T
Lumos has undertaken important research that seeks to better understand and raise awareness of the links
between education and child institutionalisation, as part of Lumos’s work in tackling the drivers of family
separation. This research is funded by UBS Optimus Foundation. '

£y
« Deinstitutionalisation - Colombia
Lumos’s programme in Colombia works to influence and support a critical shift from reliance on residential
institutions, to the provision of services which enable children to live safely in families and benefit from
community-based care. During 2022, the programme received funding from Comic Relief USA, Latin American
Children’s Trust and a private donor.

«  Early childhood intervention - Moldova

Working with the Moldovan Government, Lumos is piloting an integrated approach to early childhood
intervention (ECI) services'in two regions in Moldova. This project seeks to provide vulnerable children and their
families with accessible and appropriate care within their communities. This project is co-funded by Aperitivo,

the Karl Kahane Foundation, and Fondation Dora.

. ~.
«  Ukraine Emergency Response - Ukraine and Moldova
Lumos’s Ukraine Emergency Response programme was started in March 2022 following the invasion of Ukraine
in February 2022. Lumos has responded to this crisis through programmes in Ukraine and Moldova, working
with partner organisations and Government to deliver a humanitarian response to those displaced by the war
in Ukraine and refugees in Moldova. Lumos's response. ‘has focused on needs assessment, emergency aid (food
and basic needs), family reunification and support, child protection and psychosocial support for trauma affected
children and families. '
«  Building Enduring Systems to end Trafficking {BEST) - Haiti
Lumos works in Haiti to support the Building Endufing Systems to end Trafficking (BEST) project in Haiti, to
deliver transformative progress on ending human'trafﬁcking, with a focus on child trafficking. This was funded
by a grant from the United States Agency for lnternatlonal Development (USAID). Lumos closed its operations in
Haiti in 2022. '
» Changing the Way We Care - Global
CTWWC is a consortium of Catholic Relief Services, Lumos and Maestral International delivering a programme
designed to move the needle on care reform through demonstration projects in three countries alongside global
campaigning and advocacy. Lumos's participation in this consortium ended during 2022. .
- Child and youth participation - Bulgaria, Cze¢h Republic, Moldova
The Karl Kahane Foundation funded important child and youth participation work in Ukralne, Moldova, Bulgaria
and Czech Republic, supporting youth advocates in building their life skills and empowering them to influence
decisions and bring about change on key issues that affect their lives. The project ended in 2021.
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19) Analysis of net assets between funds of Group and Charity
' .
The net assets of the Group analysed between funds are as follows:
Unrestricted Restricted 2022 Unrestricted Restricted 2021

Funds funds Total Funds funds funds Total Funds

£000 €000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets . 135 - 135 235 - . 235
Intangible fixed assets o . 15 - 15 62 - 62
nvestments - 567 - 567 1,645 - 1,645 °
Current assets . - 3,394 609 4,003 2,079, 360 - 2,439
Current and long term liabilities and ’ i
provisions (1,171) - (1171) (775) - (775)

Total - - 2,990 609 3,549 3,246, 360 3,606
S
Included within investments above are cumulative unrealised losses of £91k (2021: gains of £91k).
, L
' A \
" The net assets of the Charity analysed between funds are as follows:
: /

'

! N

R Unrestricted Restricted 2022 Unrestricted Restricted . 2021
- Fﬁynds qurids Total Fiqnch Funds Funds Total Funds
L 000 00 000 £/000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets . 135 i - 135 235 - 235
intangible fixed assets 15 _" =~ .15 62 . ~—~ 62
Investments 567 - 567 - 1,645 -\ 1,645
. . N T ~
Current assets . 3,088 584 3,672 1,751 | 345 © 2,096 .
- — — .
Currgr‘n and long term liabilities and (4,070) _ (4,070) (2,702) ; _ (2,702)
provisions 1
- N\ e -~
Total ) _(265) 584 319 991 \.A 345 1,336
; B -
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Lumos Foundation | Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

20) Related party transactions
N\

Lumos Foundation recognises Lumos Foundation USA Inc. and other members of the Lumos
Foundation group as related parties. Transactions and further details are provided in note 3.

There were no other related party transactions during ZOK

During 2021, the charity relmbursed the Blair Partnershlp £1 59 (inclusive ofVAT) for the cost
of refreshments for an event incurred by the charity but settled by the Blair Partnership.The |
amount was settled after year end. Neil Blair, who resigned as Chair.on 8 December 2021, is

the founding partner of the Blair Partnershlp

During 2021, the charity received pro bono due diligence services from GPW Ltd to the value
of £3,500. The Chair’s husband is a shareholder and Managing Partner of GPW Ltd.

21) Financial commitm'é.nts

At 31 December 2022 the charitable company has total minimum lease commitments under
non- cancellable leases as follows:

1 2022 2021
- £000 . £000
Within one year ! : - 17 175

Between one and five years . - -

Longer than five yearé : ) - -

Total ' 17 175
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22) Comparative consolidated statement of financial activities
Unrestricted Restricted 2021
fFunds Funds Totat Funds
© £000 £000 £000
Income and expenditure
Income from: -
Royalties : 1,820 - 1,820
Donations and Gift Aid ¥ 1,178 - 1,178
Charitable activities
Grant income 43 ;‘ 1,652 1,695
Investment Income ; 35 ‘! — 35
Other income ;.. 28 ; 16 44
Total income '
. 3,276 1,668 4,944
[ 7
Expenditure on: i
Raising funds: ,
Raising funds and donor communication
costs 1,562 - 1,562
fnvestment management costs ) ~ o~
14 . - N\ 14
. Release of lease incentive ] i .
: {129) i — (129)
Charitable activities’ 5186 ' y 1.549 6.735
Total expenditure \\ g -
. ' 6,633 it 1,549 ‘8,182
Net expenditure '
(3,357) 119 (3,238)
Other recognised gains/(losses): 5
A
Y
Net gain on investments 91 “ - 91
Other recognised gains " 22 - 22
o N
Net movement in funds T (3,244) 119 (3,125)
' \, :
Reconciliation of funds: \ '
. N .
Total funds brought forward Ay 6490 241 6.731
\ (] ¢
i
\ N . .
Total funds carried forward Lo 3,246 360 3,606
N
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Lumos Foundation

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

President of Lumos Foundation (UK) and Patron, Lumos Foundation USA Inc.
J.K. Rowling

Trustees, Lumos Four)dation (UK)

C. Copland (Chair of Trustees)

u. Ali (appointed% December 2022)

B. DiMichele

N.Gill ' A
D. Moore (resigned 8 December 2022)
T. Motie (resigned 8 December 2022)
D. Mulenga 3 ' \
N. Pasricha (Treasurer) -

J. Paul : ! ,
K. Wills ' \

Directors, Lumos Foundation USA Inc. 7

- B. DiMichele (Chair) ‘
L. Little (Treasurer) .
P. McDermott . "
L. Robbins

Directors, Lumos Foundation Operations Ltd. ‘ ~ T~

- \
R. Dattani . So. \
C. Copland : . .
P.Hellmuth . : .
P. McDermott ;\‘

Trustees, Friends of Lumos USA Ltd.
C. Deshpande

P. McDermott '
P. Hellmuth b

Chief Executive Officer, Lumos Foundation (UK) A
P. McDermott

- Company Secretary, Lumos Foundation (UK)
N. Williams (resigned =24 May 2022)
C. Rossiter (appointed - 8 Décember 2022)

AN
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Lumos Foundation

Registered Office
Lumos Foundation (UK)
3rd Floor, 86-90 Paul Street, London EC2A ANE, UK\

Lumos Foundation USA Inc. : \\
557 Broadway, New York NY 10012, USA Y
Friends of Lumos USA Ltd , AN s
3rd Floor, 86-90 Paul Street, London EC2A 4NE, UK :

Lumos Foundation Operations Ltd.
3rd Floor, 86-90 Paul Street, London EC2A 4NE, UK

Lumos Foundation -UK Company registration number
05611912 (England & Wales)

Lumos Foundation -QK Charity registration number
1112575 - :

US IRS reference nq;‘nber

47-2301085

Friends.of Lumos USA Ltd - UK Company registration number
09502092 (England & Wales)

Friends of Lumos USA Ltd - UK Charity reglstratlon number
1170023 :

Lumos Foundation Operations Ltd- UK Company registration number
12369753 (England & Wales) /

Auditor (UK)
Saffery Champness, 71 Queen Victoria Street London EC4V 4BE, UK

Bankers (UK) ;
HSBC Bank plc, The Peak, 333 Vauxhall Brldge Road, Victoria, London SW1V 1EJ, UK

Solicitors (UK)
Farrer & Co LLP, 66 Lincoln’s Inn Fields, London WC2A 3LH, UK

Investment Managers (UK)

Close Brothers, 10 Exchange Square, Primrose Street, London EC2A ZBY UK

This page forms part of the Trustees’ annual report.
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Welthankfaliloflourtsupportersifoioining[iumoslinlthelightiforfevenyichild:strighttolal
familyYinfparticulardweiwouldllikeltolthankithelfollowinglorganisationstandlindividuals}
Wio¥aiongsidelmanylotherfgenerousidonorsthavelprovidedifundinglduringithisliasgyears

MARIO.C:BAUER!& NATALIA'SOBECKATIAPERITIVO INTERNATIONAL'B.V:| BEECHFIELD,BRANDS LIMITED
DARRELL BENATARI.EWIS*BERNARDMR TOM.GBITTERS:&'MRS-GERL D BITTERS:| THE:BLAIR PARTNERSHIP,

BLOOMSBURY;|(CARLSEN VERLAG GMBH,(BONNIER-MEDIA) | CASTLE FINE/ART| DALEJCENDALI
COMICRELIERUSA'| CUSHMAN& WAKEFIELDFUNDATI[]N DORA'|EDITIONS GALLIMARD!JEUNESSE
THEEQ FUUNDATIUNFARRER & CO;[(THE:FUTURE:DIRECTIONS: FOUNDATION

EVAN.GARDNER'(IN HONOR OFLDEBRA'GLAZER) [ MR H GRANT FEDERATED HERMES | KARUKAHANE FOUNDATION
THEKARLS SONTATIVA'CHARITABLEFOUNDATION [ KEVIN KIRKT KIRKLANDIRTELLIS

LELEKA'SHOWCASENJACKSONS LANESTHEATRE([ LIONELYSARIANE:SAUVAGE FUND
LITTLEMONKEYS NURSERY/EDINBURGH |'STUART(MCALPINE:MILLER'|INI:CO | THE:NOBLE:COLLECTION | ORBIA!

PENGUIN RANDOM,HOUSE:SALAMANDRA'| PEOPLE'S LITERATURE:| POTTED, PRODUCTIONS LTD [ POTTERMORE
REGATTA'|[RICHARD,ROBINSON CHARITABLE{TRUST| MR.C:RIDLEY;|:SCHOLASTIC:INC-|iSHOOSMITHS

STAVROS NIARCHOS:FOUNDATION(SNF),| TERRES DES: HOMMES:| UBS OPTIMUS FOUNDATION

UNICEF,PANAMA'| UNITED STATES'AGENCY,FORiINTERNATIONAL DEVELUPMENTBRIAN VON KLOMPENBERG
WARNERBROSYDISCOVERYj|(DAVID,YATES'AND)YVONNEWALCOTTLYATES |'ZENOFINE'ART)|'ZILLAHIBELL'GALLERY

7 WE'RE GRATEFUL TO ALL OF OUR SUPPORTERS FOR

THEIR CONTRIBUTIONS IN 2022
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